# MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE INDIANA STATE ETHICS COMMISSION July 14, 2022

# I. Call to Order

A regular meeting of the State Ethics Commission ("Commission") was called to order at 10:00 a.m. Commission members present were Katherine Noel, Chair; Corinne Finnerty; and Sue Anne Gilroy. Office of Inspector General staff present included David Cook, Inspector General; Tiffany Mulligan, Chief of Staff and Chief Legal Counsel; Sean Gorman, State Ethics Director; Mark Mader, Staff Attorney; and Nathan Baker, Legal Assistant.

Others present were Keith Beesley, General Counsel, State Personnel Department; Anne Valentine, Chief of Staff, Office of the Lieutenant Governor; David Holt, Chief Operating Officer, Indiana Destination Development Corporation; Joe Basile, Director of Legal Services, Office of the Lieutenant Governor; Erin Elam, Ethics Officer, Indiana Department of Health; Laura Parks, Staff Attorney, Indiana Department of Health; Jessica Keyes, Ethics Officer, Family and Social Services Administration; Tammera Glickman, Deputy General Counsel, Indiana Department of Administration; Matthew McCullough, Vocational Rehabilitation Counselor, Family and Social Services Administration; Whitney Downard, Reporter, Indiana Capital Chronicle; Kathleen Mills, Ethics Officer, Indiana Department of Environmental Management; Kevin Fitzgerald, Assistant General Counsel, Department of Workforce Development; Joshua Brauclle, Intern, Department of Revenue; Caroline Stephens Ryker, Administrative Law Judge, Office of Administrative Law Proceedings; and Jami Sayeed, Ethics Officer, Office of Administrative Law Proceedings.

#### II. Adoption of Agenda and Approval of Minutes

Commissioner Finnerty moved to adopt the agenda, and Commissioner Gilroy seconded the motion, and the Commission passed the agenda (3-0).

Commissioner Gilroy moved to approve the Minutes of the June 9, 2022, Commission Meeting, and Commissioner Finnerty seconded the motion, which passed (3-0).

#### III. Request for Formal Advisory Opinion

2022-FAO-010
Anne Valentine, Chief of Staff
David Holt, Chief Operating Officer of IDDC
Office of Lieutenant Governor

Anne Valentine serves as Chief of Staff for the Office of the Lieutenant Governor and is the appointed Ethics Officer for the Office, as well as for the Indiana Destination Development Corporation (IDDC). She requested a formal advisory opinion on behalf of IDDC.

The General Assembly established IDDC as a quasi-governmental entity under IC 5-33-3. IDDC is tasked with carrying out destination development functions for the State and assisting in the

development and promotion of Indiana's tourist resources, facilities, attractions and activities. <u>IC</u> <u>5-33-3-3</u> outlines IDDC duties and authorizes IDDC to "(r)eceive and expend funds, grants, gifts, and contributions of money, property, labor, and other things of value from public and private sources...". Further, IDDC may "accept and expend such moneys as may be received from any source, including income from [IDDC's] operations, for effectuating its corporate purposes".

Pursuant to <u>IC 5-33-5-5</u>, IDDC's Board of Directors and IDDC employees are under the jurisdiction of the Commission and are subject to Code rules that apply to the executive branch of state government.

The Indiana Destination Development Foundation, Inc. (Foundation) is an Indiana nonprofit corporation exempt from federal taxation pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The Foundation is further classified as a Code Section 509(a)(3) supporting organization that is organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of IDDC. The Lieutenant Governor, on behalf of IDDC, appoints the entire Foundation Board of Directors. The Foundation primarily supports IDDC through fundraising from the corporate and philanthropic community and making grants to IDDC.

Because the Foundation does not have its own staff, IDDC would like to leverage its employees to help support the Foundation in a manner that complies with Code rules and requirements. As supporting documentation for the IDDC's formal advisory opinion request, which the Commission first considered at its June 9, 2022 meeting, IDDC provided a "Voluntary Services Policy" (Policy) that outlines the terms under which IDDC employees may perform services for the Foundation as part of their official IDDC duties. Following the Commission's discussion of the Policy, the Commission tabled consideration of the formal advisory opinion request to a future meeting to permit IDDC to address the Commission's questions regarding the Policy.

Following the Commission's June 9, 2022 meeting and in support of the Commission's continued consideration of IDDC's formal advisory opinion request, IDDC submitted a revised draft policy titled "Standards for Indiana Destination Development Corporation Employees Who Perform Work on Behalf of the Foundation" (Revised Policy).

IDDC has also provided a letter of support and explanation from Indiana legislators who authored and sponsored the 2019 legislation creating IDDC. In this letter, the legislators explain that creation of the Foundation for fundraising is critical in assisting IDDC to accomplish its intended mission, and the legislators intended to allow IDDC to create a Foundation in their 2019 legislation. The letter further indicates that the legislators plan to introduce legislation in 2023 to specifically allow IDDC to create the Foundation.

Finally, IDDC provided the Commission with a Conflict of Interest form that the agency intends to implement as referenced in the Revised Policy outlining IDDC employees' work on behalf of the Foundation.

The analysis stated the following:

Ms. Valentine's request for a formal advisory opinion invokes consideration of the provisions of the Code pertaining to Use of State Property, Ghost Employment and Gifts. The application of each provision to IDDC employees is analyzed below.

### A. Use of State Property and Ghost Employment

IC 4-2-6-17 (42 IAC 1-5-12), the use of state property rule, prohibits a state officer, employee or special state appointee from using state materials, funds, property, personnel, facilities or equipment for purposes other than official state business unless the use is expressly permitted by a general written agency, departmental or institutional policy or regulation that the Commission has approved.

Likewise, 42 IAC 1-5-13, the ghost employment rule, prohibits a state officer, employee or special state appointee from engaging in, or directing others to engage in, work other than the performance of official duties during working hours, except as permitted by general written agency, departmental or institutional policy or regulation.

If performing certain work for the Foundation is part of an employee's official duties, then the work would not implicate either the use of state property or ghost employment rules. If performing certain work for the Foundation is not part of an employee's official duties, then it would implicate these rules.

Based on the information provided, the Foundation was organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of IDDC, primarily through fundraising from private sector sources and using those funds to provide grant funding to IDDC. Further, IDDC's Revised Policy identifies the terms under which IDDC employees can provide services to the Foundation as part of the IDDC employees' official duties.

IDDC's Revised Policy designates specific IDDC staff as authorized employees and outlines their respective responsibilities with respect to work performed as part of their official state duties on behalf of the Foundation. Because IDDC has defined the work authorized employees are to perform on behalf of the Foundation as part of their official state duties, these activities do not violate the Code's use of state property and ghost employment rules.

#### B. Gifts Rule

The Gifts rule prohibits state employees from knowingly soliciting or accepting any gift, favor, service, entertainment, food, drink, travel expenses or registration fees from:

- 1) a person who has a business relationship with the employee's agency; or
- 2) a person who is seeking to influence an action by the employee in his or her official capacity.

Based on the information provided, the Foundation's primary function involves fundraising from private sector sources and using those funds to provide grant funding to IDDC. Pursuant to prior Formal Advisory Opinions issued by the Commission, the Gifts rule does not prohibit

an agency from accepting gifts. As a result, so long as gifts are made for the benefit of the Foundation or IDDC as an agency and not for any individual employees or appointees, IDDC employees could accept donations to the Foundation without violating the Gifts rule; however, the Gifts rule would prohibit IDDC employees from soliciting donations from persons with a business relationship with IDDC or persons who are seeking to influence an action by an IDDC employee in his or her official capacity.

The IDDC Revised Policy identifies several positions as Authorized Employees who can engage in fundraising activities on behalf of the Foundation. As such, the work would implicate the Gifts rule, and IDDC employees are prohibited from soliciting donations from persons with a business relationship with IDDC or persons who are seeking to influence an action by an IDDC employee in his or her official capacity. The Revised Policy specifically prohibits Authorized Employees from soliciting donations from anyone who has a business relationship with IDDC.

The Commission finds that IDDC filed the agency's Revised Policy with the Commission pursuant to the requirements of 42 IAC 1-6-1. The Commission further finds that, to the extent that IDDC employees' work on behalf of the Foundation is performed as part of the employees' official state duties as documented in the IDDC Revised Policy, IDDC employee activities performed on behalf of the Foundation do not violate the use of state property or ghost employment provisions in the Code. Finally, the Commission finds that the Revised Policy is at least as strict as the Code, and that IDDC employees continue to be subject to the Code's provisions, such as the requirements under the Gifts rule.

Commissioner Gilroy moved to approve the Commission's findings, and Commission Chair Noel seconded the motion, which passed (2-1).

## IV. Request for Formal Advisory Opinion

2022-FAO-014

Logan McCullough, Intake Vocational Rehabilitation Counselor Jessica Keyes, Ethics Officer Family and Social Services Administration

Commissioner Finnerty moved to table further discussion of this matter to the next State Ethics Commission Meeting until more information, including a proper screening policy, could be provided from the requesting party. Commissioner Gilroy seconded the motion, which passed via (3-0).

#### V. Request for Formal Advisory Opinion

2022-FAO-015

Caroline A. Stephens Ryker, Administrative Law Judge Jami Sayeed, Ethics Officer Office of Administrative Law Proceedings Caroline A. Stephens Ryker (Ms. Ryker) is an employee of the Indiana Office of Administrative Law Proceedings (OALP). Ms. Ryker currently serves as an Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) in the General Government Division of OALP, and on July 11, 2022, Ms. Ryker will transition to a new position as a Chief Administrative Law Judge for the Social Services Division of the OALP.

Outside of work, Ms. Ryker serves as a board member of the National Association of Hearing Officials (NAHO) as the Central Representative. She began serving as the Central Representative in January of 2022, and her term will end in December of 2024. NAHO is a nonprofit organization committed to providing education on best practices for Administrative Law Judges. OALP currently purchases memberships from NAHO for select employees so that they can take advantage of NAHO's training opportunities.

Each year, NAHO holds a conference on best practices for ALJs. NAHO covers the cost of the conference for board members, along with some of the travel expenses incurred by board members, because the day before the conference, NAHO holds a day-long board meeting. NAHO also covers some travel costs and the cost of the conference for speakers who present at the conference. As a board member, Ms. Ryker is eligible to have her conference fee covered by NAHO, along with some of her travel expenses. Additionally, Ms. Ryker plans to speak at the conference, which would result in a similar coverage of her conference expenses by NAHO. This year, the conference will be held during the second week of August.

Ms. Ryker will not use state resources to complete her NAHO related responsibilities, including the preparation and presentation of her NAHO class. If she needs to attend to a NAHO issue during work hours, she will either make the time up or use leave time. Her participation in NAHO as a board member is not part of her state job, although she has agreed to maintain her NAHO certification status while an ALJ with OALP.

The August 2022 NAHO Conference will address topics that are relevant to Ms. Ryker's current and future job with OALP. Specifically, in both roles, she serves as an ALJ, and in her new role, she will be training and supervising ALJs. A conference on best practices for ALJs will allow her to stay current on issues in administrative law as well as in the practice of serving as an adjudicator. She will be able to use the skills that she learns for the adjudication of her own cases and will be able to pass the skills she learns on to other ALJs within OALP. Attending this kind of conference falls within Ms. Ryker's job duties. Ms. Ryker has conferred with the OALP Ethics Officer, who has represented to her that OALP will consider waiving the gift rule provided it addresses the relevant ethical issues.

The analysis stated the following:

#### A. Gifts and Donor Restrictions

The Gift rule prohibits state employees from knowingly soliciting or accepting any gift, favor, service, entertainment, food, drink, travel expenses or registration fees from:

3) a person who has a business relationship with the employee's agency; or

4) a person who is seeking to influence an action by the employee in his or her official capacity.

The donor restrictions rule mirrors the Gift rule and prohibits those with a business relationship with a state employee's agency from offering a gift in that same circumstance.

"Business relationship" is defined in IC 4-2-6-1(a)(5) to include the dealings of a person with an agency seeking, obtaining, establishing, maintaining, or implementing a pecuniary interest in a contract or purchase with the agency.

Ms. Ryker states that OALP purchases NAHO memberships for select OALP employees to take advantage of training opportunities. Accordingly, NAHO obtains a pecuniary interest in a purchase with OALP, and a business relationship exists between OALP and NAHO for the purposes of the Gift rule.

Further, the waiver of the conference registration fee and reimbursement of travel expenses constitute prohibited gifts under the Gift rule, unless an exception to the Gift rule applies. Based on the information provided, none of the exceptions to the Gift rule apply to the conference registration fee and reimbursement of travel expenses; therefore, Ms. Ryker's acceptance of these gifts is prohibited under the Gift rule unless OALP's appointing authority or the appointing authority's designee files with the Commission a waiver that meets the requirements outlined in 42 IAC 1-5-19(c).

#### B. Additional compensation

The Additional compensation rule prohibits a state employee from soliciting or accepting compensation for the performance of official duties other than provided for by law. "Compensation" is defined in IC 4-2-6-1(a)(7) as any money, thing of value or financial benefit conferred on or received by any person in return for services rendered or for services to be rendered whether by that person or another.

Ms. Ryker's activities as a NAHO board member and a conference speaker are not part of her state duties. Based on the information provided, NAHO offered to waive Ms. Ryker's conference registration fee and reimburse her travel expenses because she is a NAHO board member and because she is speaking at the conference, not in return for Ms. Ryker's attendance at the rest of the conference, which is part of her state duties.

Because NAHO is providing the waiver of the conference registration fee and travel reimbursement to Ms. Ryker for activities that Ms. Ryker engages in as part of her board duties outside of state employment, such items do not constitute prohibited additional compensation under this rule.

#### C. Honorarium

The honoraria rule prohibits state employees from personally accepting an honorarium for any activity that may be considered part of the state employee's official duties. The definition

of "honorarium" includes a payment of money for an appearance, a speech or an article but excludes payment or reimbursement for travel expenses.

NAHO is waiving the conference registration fee to Ms. Ryker because she is a NAHO board member and speaker at the conference, and not as payment for her attendance or participation in the conference as a state employee. To the extent that NAHO's fee waiver is an honorarium, it is not a prohibited honorarium because it is not for activity that is part of her official duties; therefore, Ms. Ryker s acceptance of the conference fee waiver from NAHO is not prohibited under this rule.

### D. Ghost employment and Use of state property for other than official business

The ghost employment rule provides that a state employee shall not engage in work other than the performance of official duties during working hours, except as permitted by general written agency, departmental or institutional policy or regulation. The use of state property rule provides that an employee may not use state materials, funds, property, personnel, facilities or equipment for purposes other than official state business unless the use is expressly permitted by a general written agency, departmental or institutional policy or regulation that has been approved by the State Ethics Commission.

Ms. Ryker is attending the NAHO conference both in her capacity as a NAHO board member and as part of her state duties at OALP. She states that she will not use state equipment or time in preparation for her NAHO board activities. She further provides that she will not use state time or equipment during the portion of her attendance at the NAHO conference when she is engaging in board related activities or for the session at which she is presenting.

Ms. Ryker states that her NAHO board activities will be conducted using non-state resources and on her own time, such as after regular working hours, on the weekends or during authorized leave. So long as Ms. Ryker does not use state time or state property for work other than her OALP duties, she will not be in violation of these rules.

The Commission finds that NAHO maintains a business relationship with OALP for the purposes of the Code's applicability. The Commission finds that Ms. Ryker's acceptance of a conference registration fee waiver and reimbursement for travel expenses from NAHO is prohibited under the Gift rule unless OALP's appointing authority or the appointing authority's designee files with the Commission a waiver that meets the requirements outlined in 42 IAC 1-5-19(c). The Commission further finds that Ms. Ryker's acceptance of a conference registration fee waiver and reimbursement for travel expenses from NAHO do not constitute prohibited additional compensation or honoraria under the Code. Finally, the Commission finds that Ms. Ryker's activities on behalf of NAHO in her role as a NAHO Board member would not violate the Code's provisions regarding the use of state property or ghost employment, so long as Ms. Ryker does not use state time or state property for any work other than her official state duties at OALP.

Commissioner Gilroy moved to approve the Commission's findings, and Commissioner Finnerty seconded the motion, which passed (3-0).

## VI. Consideration of the Final Report

In the Matter of Kris Meltzer Case Number 2021-12-0347

Commission Chair Noel moved to approve the Final Report and Commissioner Gilroy seconded the motion which passed (3-0).

## VII. Ethics Director's Report

State Ethics Director Sean Gorman reported that the Auditors and Investigators Conference presented by the Office of Inspector General was held on June 22, 2022. The conference was held in person and a video recording of the conference was available at the OIG website.

Director Gorman also reported that OIG Personnel presented at the Attorney General's Contracts Seminar on July 13, 2022, where they presented information on ethics considerations regarding State contracts.

Finally, that the OIG has issued 21 Informal Advisory Opinions (IAOs) since the June 2022 State Ethics Commission meeting. Most of the IAOs were regarding the Code of Ethics on post-employment, outside employment, conflicts of interest, and gifts.

## VIII. Adjournment

Commissioner Gilroy moved to adjourn the public meeting of the State Ethics Commission. Commissioner Finnerty seconded the motion, which passed (3-0).

The public meeting adjourned at 10:39 a.m.



#### Office of General Counsel 402 W. WASHINGTON STREET, ROOM W451, MS27 INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46204-2744

August 29, 2022

Ethics Commission
Office of the Inspector General
315 West Ohio Street, Room 104
Indianapolis, Indiana 46202
Via Email: info@ig.in.gov

RE: Updated-Request for Formal Advisory Opinion for Logan McCullough

Dear Chairperson Noel and members of the Ethics Commission:

The Indiana Family and Social Services Administration ("FSSA"), on behalf of Logan McCullough, requests to be added to the September agenda to continue its presentation on a Formal Advisory Opinion from the State Ethics Commission regarding a potential conflicts of interest matter. Mr. McCullough is requesting a formal advisory opinion regarding a potential referral source for the program with which he is employed.

By way of summary, Mr. McCullough is currently an intake vocational rehabilitation counselor (VRC) with the Vocational Rehabilitation Program (VR) with the Division of Disability and Rehabilitative Services (DDRS) for FSSA. In this role, Mr. McCullough's primary responsibilities include:

-Providing counseling and guidance to individuals with disabilities to assist them in achieving employment outcomes consistent with their strengths, resources, priorities, concerns, abilities, capabilities, interests, and informed choice.

Half of Mr. McCullough's role is specific to intake services and the other half is providing general and ongoing services for individuals in the VR program.

In September of 2021, Mr. McCullough's Wife earned a certification in Braille training. Specifically, the training Mr. McCullough's Wife went through was specific to certification in one-on-one Braille training. There are no other known trained one-on-one Braille trainers certified within the state. Because of her unique certification, Mr. McCullough's Wife would like to contract with VR as a vendor for Braille training services (one-on-one) with those participants who are Blind or Visually Impaired and could benefit from this training. There are other Braille training services in the state, one example being through Bosma, but no other known one-on-one



Ethics Commission RE: Logan McCullough August 29, 2022 Page | 2

certified trainers.

Mr. McCullough presented to the State Ethics Commission in July 2022, and the Commission requested additional details regarding a potential screen be presented at a subsequent meeting.

Based on the information above, I would request to be added to the September State Ethics Commission agenda to provide further information and more details regarding a potential screen to allow for a determination by the Ethics Commission regarding any ethical concerns with Mr. McCullough's Wife's vendor contract with VR for training services due to Mr. McCullough's potential for referrals.

A proposed screen with additional details is attached hereto as Exhibit A for review.

Sincerely,

Jessica Keyes

FSSA Ethics Officer

Jessica Keyes

# CONFLICT OF INTEREST SCREEN FOR LOGAN MCCULLOUGH . 2022

#### I. RECITALS

Logan McCullough is an Intake Vocational Rehabilitation Counselor with the Vocational Rehabilitation Program ("VR") for the Division of Disability and Rehabilitative Services ("DDRS"); and

Taylor McCullough, Logan McCullough's Wife is a certified one-on-one Braille trainer certified through the National Certification in Unified English Braille ("NCUEB") process; and

Taylor McCullough is the only known NCUEB certified individual in the state of Indiana and wishes to contract with VR to provide one-on-one Braille training to VR participants; and

As an intake and general VR counselor, without further screening, Logan McCullough could have potential to refer applicants or participants seeking one-on-one Braille training to Taylor McCullough as the only known certified provider of this service; and

Any direct referral from Logan McCullough to Taylor McCullough of VR applicants or participants for one-on-one Braille training could create a conflict of interest under IC 4-2-6-9 or implicate the ethics code as to Nepotism pursuant to IC 4-2-6-16; and

An appropriate screen as detailed below would resolve potential ethics code concerns; and

Logan McCullough, for his remaining tenure with the Vocational Rehabilitation Program under the Division of Disability and Rehabilitative Services, agrees to in all ways follow, adhere to, and satisfy the terms of the following Conflict of Interest Screen.

#### II. CONFLICT OF INTEREST SCREEN

- 1. Logan McCullough shall not participate in any decision or vote, or any matter related to such decision or vote, in which Taylor McCullough could have a financial interest.
- 2. Logan McCullough will not have a direct financial interest in any contract between Taylor McCullough and VR and/or DDRS.
- 3. A two-tier screening process is implemented as follows for intake applicants and participants in Logan McCullough's counseling Area (Area 11 in Muncie) or other area where he may be providing services:
  - a. First, Logan McCullough's supervisor will screen all applicants to be assigned to intake counselors in Area 11 and pull any applicants with a primary diagnosis of Blindness or Visual Impairments and assign those applicants to either another intake counselor or a Specialty Counselor specifically coordinating applicants and participants who are Blind or Visually Impaired; and
  - b. Second, should Logan McCullough learn, at any point in the intake or general counseling process, that someone has a diagnosis of Blindness or Visual Impairment, or otherwise requests information on services related to Blindness or Visual Impairment, Logan McCullough will advise the applicant or participant that he will refer them to a Specialty Counselor who coordinates on matters related to Blindness and Visual Impairment, and Logan McCullough will not continue to counsel these applicants or participants nor make any referrals or suggestions relating to Braille training
- 4. That once an applicant or participant is reassigned through the two-tiered process noted in paragraph two (2), Logan McCullough will be screened from involvement in the counseling or service referral process related to those individuals. The Specialty Counselor or other VR counselor will not include Logan McCullough in conversations related to those applicants or participants, and he will be screened from additional information related to services or referrals.
- 5. Logan McCullough will not oversee the pick list for Braille training providers and will not supervise or address any quality and outcomes issues related to Taylor McCullough, nor will he be involved in the negotiation, administration,

or coordination of any vendor contract between Taylor McCullough and VR and/or DDRS. Logan McCullough will not review or approve vendors of Braille training, and that will be coordinated by the Director of Program Improvement for the Bureau of Rehabilitation Services.

# III. EMPLOYEE AFFIRMATION

$\varepsilon$	ong Conflict of Interest Screen, and will in all ways follow, adhere to,	
and satisfy the above stated restrictions and param	neters during my tenure with VR and DDRS. I have shared and discuss	эd
this Conflict of Interest Screen and its requirement	ts with my supervisor.	
Executed and agreed this th day of	2022, by:	
,		
	<del></del>	
Logan McCullough		



Office of General Counsel 402 W. WASHINGTON STREET, ROOM W451, MS27 INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46204-2744

July 22, 2022

Ethics Commission
Office of the Inspector General
315 West Ohio Street, Room 104
Indianapolis, Indiana 46202
Via Email: info@ig.in.gov

RE: Request for Formal Advisory Opinion for Rachel Johnson-Yates

Dear Chairperson Noel and members of the Ethics Commission:

The Indiana Family and Social Services Administration ("FSSA"), on behalf of Rachel Johnson-Yates, requests a Formal Advisory Opinion from the State Ethics Commission regarding a post-employment opportunity with a consulting firm who is a contractor with FSSA.

Ms. Johnson-Yates is currently the Deputy Director and Chief of Staff for the Division of Mental Health and Addiction ("DMHA") for FSSA. In her role, Ms. Johnson-Yates's primary responsibilities include: direct oversight of teams focused on Quality Improvement/Assurance, Licensure/Certification, Equity, Systemic Integration, and Operations.

Recently, Ms. Johnson-Yates has been exploring post-employment opportunities. Specifically, Ms. Johnson-Yates has been in employment negotiations with Health Management Associates ("HMA"), and has been offered a position as a consultant with their team.

HMA is an independent consulting organization that focuses on improving the health and well-being of individuals and communities by making publicly funded healthcare, and the social services that support it, more accessible, equitable, and effective. HMA provides services to state governments and other stakeholders to advise on healthcare matters.

HMA does have active contracts with FSSA, and provides consulting services for FSSA broadly. Currently, HMA has two (2) active contracts with FSSA. The first contract is for HMA to provide development and project management implementation regarding substance use disorder waiver evaluation services for the Office of Medicaid Policy and Planning. The second is with DMHA, and sets forth that HMA will provide support for drafting a state plan amendment regarding mobile crisis services in the Medicaid program.



Ethics Commission RE: Rachel Johnson-Yates July 22, 2022 Page | 2

Ms. Johnson-Yates has been involved in employment negotiations in relation to a position as a Senior Consultant with HMA and has a potential start date of September 6, 2022. In this role, Ms. Johnson-Yates would be providing healthcare-related expertise and advice to help organizations improve their business performance in terms of operations, profitability, management, structure, and strategy. Ms. Johnson-Yates learned of the position with HMA outside of her state employment, and specifically, through an online search.

HMA provides services nationally, and Ms. Johnson-Yates will recuse herself from working with DMHA during her initial period of employment with HMA if she accepts the position there. She will work on contracts related to program development for other states, excluding Indiana, for the first year of her post-employment. At some point, Ms. Johnson-Yates may be in a position to provide support to Indiana and FSSA through her work with HMA, but she has advised HMA that she will need to avoid Indiana and FSSA specific projects for her initial period of employment.

Ms. Johnson-Yates filed a conflicts of interest disclosure form regarding decisions and voting on or about May 18, 2022, which was file-marked by the Office of the Inspector General that same day. A screen was implemented whereby Ms. Johnson-Yates was excluded from working on matters for which HMA has a financial interest. Ms. Johnson-Yates had not previously had contact or communication with HMA other than minimally in their role as consultant for DMHA. The May 18, 2022, disclosure was filed as it became known to Ms. Johnson-Yates that HMA was submitting a proposal in response to an RFP for a project that Ms. Johnson-Yates would have been overseeing and scoring in her role as Deputy Director and Chief of Staff with DMHA. Due to ongoing negotiations regarding post-employment, Ms. Johnson-Yates was screened from participating in any discussion, vote, decision, or matters relating to any vote or decision involving or related to HMA and specifically the RFP proposal oversight and scoring.

Ms. Johnson-Yates is not the owner or administrator of any contracts with DMHA currently and has not made discretionary decisions affecting the outcome of the negotiation or nature of the administration of any HMA contract, specifically. Ms. Johnson-Yates has not negotiated or made discretionary decisions relating to the outcome of contract negotiations or the nature of the administration of contracts with HMA. She does not provide regulatory or licensure oversight on behalf of DMHA for HMA.

Ms. Johnson-Yates's role with HMA would not include any lobbying activities. Ms. Johnson-Yates understands that she is prohibited from representing or assisting HMA in a particular matter involving the state if she personally and substantially participated in the matter during her state employment. Ms. Johnson-Yates has only had direct contact with HMA in the implementation of DMHA projects/contracts on approximately five (5) occasions during her three (3) years of employment with the state. She does not work directly on mobile crisis units or substance use disorder waiver evaluation services in her current role. Ms. Johnson-Yates, as Deputy Director and Chief of Staff of DMHA is aware of these projects, but does not lead them.

Ethics Commission RE: Rachel Johnson-Yates July 22, 2022 Page | 3

Ms. Johnson-Yates also appreciates and understands the restrictions against divulging or benefitting from any confidential information learned through state employment in any postemployment position.

The State Ethics Commission has reviewed other matters related to FSSA employees who sought post-employment opportunities with HMA (and SVC previously, which was acquired by HMA on or about 2017). Please see 2019-FAO-2007 and No. 16-I-16.

Based on the information above, I would request a determination by the Ethics Commission regarding any ethical concerns with Ms. Johnson-Yates's post-employment opportunity with HMA. The filed conflict of interest disclosure form previously submitted is attached hereto as Exhibit A. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Jessica Keyes

FSSA Ethics Officer

# **EXHIBIT A**

# INDIANA STATE ETHICS COMMISSION



# ETHICS DISCLOSURE STATEMENT CONFLICTS OF INTEREST — DECISIONS AND VOTING State Form 55860 (R / 10-15) OFFICE OF THE INSPECTOR GENERAL IC 4-2-6-9

MAY 1 8 2022

FILED

			9 60 60	· 14/2		
In accordance with IC 4-2-6-9, you must file your disclosure with the State Ethics Commission no later than seven (7) days after the conduct that gives rise to the conflict. You must also include a copy of the notification provided to your agency appointing authority and ethics officer when filing this disclosure. This disclosure will be posted on the Inspector General's website.						
Name (last)  Name (first)  Name (first)  Rachel		Name <i>(middle)</i>				
Name of office or agency Divison of Mental Health and Addiction		Job title Deputy Director and Chief of Staff				
Address of office (number and street) 402 W Washington ST.		City ZIP code Indianapolis 46204		ZIP code		
Office telephone number ( 317 ) 760-5366	Office e-mail address (required) rachel.johnsonyates@gmail	1)				
Describe the conflict of interest: I have applied for a position at Health Management Associates (HMA) and have received word that I may be						
selected to begin the interview process. I have not historically been involved in oversight of any HMA contracts,						
nor served as a lead on any of their projects in the division. At most, my involvement with them has been ancillary.						
However, I recently learned that HMA put a bid in on a DMHA RFP for a project I may lead. In order to maintain strong ethical parameters, I						
will plan to screen myself from the scoring process. If HMA is selected by the evaluation team, I will screen myself						
from any conversations, negotiations, etc. until the interview process is complete.						
	********************************					
	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,					
				(A)		
				~~~~		

Describe the screen established by your ethics officer: (Attach additional pages as needed.) Employee's manager has implemented a screen that will prohibit the employee from partici	pating in any vote, decision, or					
matters relating to any vote or decision, involving or related to HMA. Specifically, procurement matters and scoring of						
any HMA RFP will be reassigned to another employee. There are no other currently known HMA matters the employee						
is involved in, but if made known, employee will also be screened from these and any future	e issues where HMA has a					
financial interest. This screen will remain in place for the employee's remaining tenure with the State or until they						
discontinue employment negotiations with HMA, whichever occurs first.						
AFFIRMATION AND THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY O	Section of an electric confiner					
Your signature below affirms that your disclosures on this form are true, complete, and come knowledge and belief. In addition to this form, you have attached a copy of your written disappointing authority and ethics officer.	,					
Signature of state officer, employee or special state appointee	Date signed (month, day, year) 5/17/22					
Printed full name of state officer, employee or special state appointee Rachel Johnson-Yates						
FOR ETHICS OFFICER USE ONLY						
Your signature below affirms that you have reviewed this disclosure form and that it is true, complete, and correct to the best of your knowledge and belief. You also attest that your agency has implemented the screen described above.						
Signature of ethics officer justica Reyes	Date signed (month, day, year)					
Printed full name of ethics officer  JESSICO KEYES	, 7, 5,					

From: To: Keyes, Jessica K Keyes, Jessica K

Subject:

FW: Conflicts of Interest Disclosure-Rachel Johnson-Yates

Date:

Wednesday, May 18, 2022 4:25:29 PM

From: Rusyniak, Daniel E (Dan) < <u>Daniel.Rusyniak@fssa.IN.gov</u>>

Sent: Wednesday, May 18, 2022 2:25 PM

**To:** Marshall, Cathrine (Cate) < <u>Cathrine.Marshall@fssa.IN.gov</u>> **Subject:** RE: Conflicts of Interest Disclosure-Rachel Johnson-Yates

I have reviewed this.

From: Marshall, Cathrine (Cate) < Cathrine.Marshall@fssa.IN.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, May 18, 2022 2:00 PM

**To:** Rusyniak, Daniel E (Dan) < <u>Daniel.Rusyniak@fssa.IN.gov</u>>

Subject: FW: Conflicts of Interest Disclosure-Rachel Johnson-Yates

Review and acknowledge

Thank you, Cate Marshall Indiana FSSA

Email: Cathrine.Marshall@FSSA.IN.gov

\*Please note, there is no e in the middle of Cathrine.

Statement of Confidentiality: The information in this message is privileged and confidential and it is intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you are prohibited from disseminating, distributing, or copying the information contained in this message. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender and destroy all copies of the original message.

From: Keyes, Jessica K < Jessica. Keyes@fssa. IN.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, May 18, 2022 9:34 AM

**To:** Marshall, Cathrine (Cate) < <u>Cathrine.Marshall@fssa.IN.gov</u>> **Subject:** Conflicts of Interest Disclosure-Rachel Johnson-Yates

Good morning, Cate,

Please find attached a conflicts of interest disclosure form for Dr. Rusyniak's review. Thank you!

Thank you,

Jessica Keyes | Managing Attorney and Ethics Officer | Indiana Family and Social Services Administration 402 W. Washington Street, Rm. W451, Indianapolis, IN 46204 | T: 317-234-3884

#### Email: Jessica.Keyes@fssa.IN.gov



#### \*\*Privileged and Confidential\*\*

This message and any attachment(s) are privileged and confidential and are protected by legal privileges, including the attorney-client privilege, attorney work product privilege, and/or deliberative process privilege. The information in this message is intended only for the named recipient(s). If you are not the intended recipient(s), you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution, or any action taken or omitted in reliance on the contents of this information is prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender and permanently delete all copies of this message and any attachments. Clients are advised not to disclose any confidential material; clients who disclose confidential material may be waiving his/her/their applicable legal privilege(s).